BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
March 30, 2011
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center, Social Hall (Pukalani)

CONVENE: 6:04 p.m.
PRESENT:

STAFF:

Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Elle Cochran, Member
Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr., Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino, Member
Councilmember Mike White, Member
Scott Kaneshina, Legislative Analyst
David Raatz, Substitute Legislative Analyst
Tammy Frias, Substitute Committee Secretary
Ken Fukuoka, Director, Office of Council Services
Michele Yoshimura, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla
Susan Clements, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr.
Troy Hashimoto, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Mike White
Arthur Suyama, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Danny A. Mateo

ADMIN.:
OTHERS:

Sananda K. Baz, Budget Director, Office of the Mayor
Rita Silva
Chantal Ratte, Executive Director, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Nathan Roseberg, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Sally Keanini, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Joe Keanini, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Janice Sarol, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Hoku Bailey, Ka Lima 0 Maui
Harriet E. Sibonga
Aubree Saito
Angel Blessing Ho, student, King Kekaulike High School (Science Olympiad Team
Captain)
Mariel Jacinto
Charisse Apo-Tokuda
Justin K. Dudoit
Christian Alain Innela

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center, Social Hall

March 30, 2011

Mario Canol
Shyla Nikaido
Chloe Nakagawa
Lisa Rodrigues, Unit Director, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Shatisha Kauhaahaa, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Maeleea Inciong, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Liane Tomita, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Mayci Tomita, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Jaime Gomes, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Leah Kinores, Boys & Girls Club of Maui
Mona Omid
Evanette Turalva
Nicole Burrows
John Y. Arisumi, President, ILWU Central Maui Pensioners Club
Emily Haines-Swatek, teacher
Amber Starr
Markus G. Speidel, teacher
Betty M. DeLima
Ron Montgomery, President, Kula Community Association
Leonard Hasse
Kevin Kealoha
Maggie Prevenas, teacher
Yuki Lei Sugimura, Festivals of Aloha
Gerry Ross, Maui Coffee Association
Harlan Hughes
Melissa Rupert
Jim Crowe, Kula Community Association
Kathleen V. Phillips, President, Kula AARP
Scott Obley, Director of Sales, Wailea Marriott
Anne Trygstad, Aging with Aloha Coalition
Alan Kaufman, DVM, Kula Community Association Board
Herminio Pante
Richard Lucas, Program Manager, Friends of Old Maui High School
David Lindsay
Dana Jones
Jessica Foster, Teacher, King Kekaulike High School
Jim St. James, Board Member, Keiki Kokua
Alda St. James, Executive Director, Keiki Kokua
Tracy A. Jones, President, Keiki Kokua Board of Directors
Pam Farnsworth
Richard Pohle, Upcountry Meter List Association (UMLA)
Patty Hoffman, Finance/HR Director, Hui Malama Learning Center
Kianna Muralt, student, Hui Malama Learning Center
Kennedy Souza, student, Hui Malama Learning Center
-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
Mayor lIannibal Tavares Community Center, Social Hall

March 30, 2011

Sandy Ryan, Board of Directors President, Hui Malama Learning Center
Kimberly Carhart
Rosemary S. Robbins
Norma Flavala-Estrada, foster parent, Keiki Kokua
Dick Mayer, Board Member, Kula Community Association
Duane Porter
Rita Barreras, Aging with Aloha Coalition
Twenty (20) additional unidentified attendees

ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. 1 1-80)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for March 30, 2011 at the Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center.
Good evening, everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for having us here this evening. At this time, I'd like to yield the
floor to Councilmember Gladys Baisa who will provide us with the introduction of the Members
that are present here tonight. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair Pontanilla. Welcome to our Upcountry
Budget hearing tonight. I'm very honored to be the representative of this area. I'd like to thank
all of you for coming out. The Members that are here tonight, of course, is the Chair of this
Committee, the Budget and Finance Chair who is going to take us through this whole process Joe Pontanilla who represents Kahului. And so I don't mess this up terribly, I'm going to just
start at my left and come down the row. I'm kind of short so I'm at a disadvantage behind the
guys. I'm going to stand up. Your Makawao-Haiku-Paia representative, Mike White. Our
Council Chair from Molokai, Danny Mateo. And from the island of Lanai, Riki Hokama, no
stranger to you. And next to me on the far end over there we have Bob Carroll from East Maui.
And he's returning so you probably know him too. And from Wailuku, Mike Victorino. And
our new South Maui representative, Don Couch. And also a new representative from West
Maui, we have Elle Cochran. So thank you very much and I'd also like to extend to you from
my Team Baisa, please help yourself to refreshments. We have coffee, water, tea, juice, and a
lot of goodies that the campaign team made. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Gladys, for the introduction. Also with us tonight we do have
some people from our Staff. We do have Michele Yoshimura, Scott Kaneshina, Tammy Diaz
[sic], David Raatz, and in the back we have . . . he's gone, Arthur Suyama as well as Ken
Fukuoka. They are our Staff people. Thank you.
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Tonight, it is your opportunity to present us your comments on the Mayor's proposed budget for
Fiscal Year 2012. Just a few ground rules, if you do have a cell phone, please turn it off at this
time or put it on the silent mode. For those of you that are providing public testimony, you have
three minutes to testify. When your name is called, please come forward to this microphone
fronting the Council members here. Please state your name, organization that you represent, and
speak directly into the mike because all of the testimony is being recorded. Upon completion of
your testimony please don't rush back to your seat. Members may have questions for you. So if
you can stand there for couple of seconds at least give us the opportunity to ask you questions, if
we do have questions. With that being said, I'd like to introduce the first testifier this evening,
Rita Silva.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. SILVA: Good evening, my name is Rita Silva and I am with AARP. I live in Olinda. Thank you
for all the County does for residents, especially for the seniors and children. If you want to make
a good sound investment, please support the Mayor's funding for MEO Transportation, Head
Start, Kahi Kamali'i, Youth Services, and the $500,000 CIP for the transportation facility. These
are vital programs for our community. We also ask you to support all services for the seniors.
The Ala Hou Program for Upcountry has allowed people with disabilities to get out of their
homes and be mobile the same as the residents without disability. We need more of these
services. Thank you again. And I want to ask you to have the roads supervisor for Olinda Road
go for a ride in the deep of winter rain and take a look at how dangerous it is. There is no
drainage. Now we can't have everything that we want, but I would like to suggest that it be
looked into and possibly a design started for future road improvements. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Rita. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. The next testifier is Chantal Ratte.
MS. RATTE: Good evening, Council members. Thank you for the opportunity to testify. I'm Chantal
Ratte. I'm the Executive Director with Ka Lima 0 Maui, and I'd just like to humbly ask your
continued support of our grounds and custodial contracts. These contracts employ over 40 adults
with disabilities. They are paid minimum wage or higher, full benefits (vacation, sick leave, and
health care). And those contracts are valuable to the mission of Ka Lima, which is enhancing
lives through self-reliance. And I think that I'm going to let some of the hardest workers at Ka
Lima 0 Maui do the talking here. First, we have Nathan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nathan, please.
MR. ROSEBERG: Sorry . . . I'm a little bit nervous. My name is Nathan Roseberg. I live in Makawao,
20-A Miner. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui services. I want to make some more money. I try my
hardest. I work for Mona's crew . . . supervisors. And I'm with Chantal, her neighbor. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good job.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sally Keanini?
MS. KEANINI: Okay, my name is Sally Keanini. I work for Ka Lima 0 Maui. We work at the County
parks at Kihei side and we do a lot of work over there. We weed eat, lawn mower, plus we cut
hedges and stuff, and we need more support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Joe Keanini?
MR. KEANINI: My name is Joseph Keanini. I live up at Kula 200. And also I work for Ka Lima 0
Maui. Ka Lima is trying to get this job going and I hope that we can continue our job and . . . I
guess that's it for me. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Janice Sarol?
MS. SAROL: Hi, my name is Janice Sarol. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui.
MS. RATTE: Janice works in the Custodial Department and I have to say Janice is one of our hardest
workers. She's been with us for a long time. She's always willing to help her co-workers,
always that beautiful smile on her face, and a day without Janice would not be the same at Ka
Lima.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hoku Bailey?
MS. BAILEY: My name is Hoku Bailey. I'm from Haiku District. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui and I
work custodial. I just hope that the Council gives us more work and more . . . because I work
Central so you guys can give us more work and more contracts. I mean, that would be a great
help. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Chantal at this time? Seeing none,
thank you again. Harriet Sibonga? Harriet?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She passes.
MS. SIBONGA (speaking from the audience): I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I pass. . . (inaudible) .. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You had a very good friend that signed up for you. Aubree
Saito?
MS. SAITO: Hi, my name is Aubree Saito and I'm testifying in support of Maui Economic
Development Board. I'm a senior at King Kekaulike High School and I'm in the EAST
Program. I've been in it for two years. And as an EAST student, I've had many experiences and
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opportunities given to me thanks to the Maui Economic Development Board. I've participated in
things like introduce a girl to engineer day, tech day, industry day, photo shop and
training, and they are all sponsored and financed by MEDB. And I've been interested in
engineering and astronomy since 7th grade, so having the opportunity to be in these programs
has opened my eyes and exposed me to these experiences, and it's made me consider these
things as majors for college and careers for the future. So I'm really grateful for those things.
And I'm excited to say that I'll be attending the STEM conference for EAST in two days in
Wailea. So I wouldn't be able to do these things if it weren't for MEDB and EAST so I want to
thank you guys for supporting them and ask for your continuation in supporting them. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Aubree? Nope, no questions. Angel
Blessing Ho.
MS. HO: Good evening. My name is Angel Blessing Ho. I am currently a senior at King Kekaulike
High School. And I am the current Science Olympiad team captain at our school. I would like
to speak on behalf of Maui Economic Development Board and I would like to thank you guys for
supporting the Science Olympiad Program. If you didn't know, Maui Intermediate Schools
dominated the State competition. Maui Prep came in first; St. Joseph came in second place.
They beat Punahou. Come on high rankings. And our public school here, Baldwin, came in
fourth place. At our team, we won regionals and we came in first place in Human Phys. So I
would like you guys to . . . I humbly ask you guys to continue to support this program. It really
means a lot as a senior to see you guys support my underclassmen. They really need people to
take care of them. So, thank you, guys, and have a nice evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much
and congratulations. Mariel Jacinto.
MS. JACINTO: Good evening. My name is Mariel Jacinto and I am a junior at King Kekaulike High
School. I am a member of the Science Olympiad team at our school and we went to compete in
Oahu. It was our first time to compete. It was a great experience and we thank you for all the
support you've given us. We hope you would continue supporting us so we can improve. The
Science Olympiad program it opened a lot of windows for us. It's our first experience so we
hope that next year we can do better and we know what to expect, and it will just help us in our
future just knowing what to do. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Charisse Apo-Tokuda.
MS. APO-TOKUDA: Okay, I'm talking in behalf of the MEO Head Start. My name is Charisse ApoTokuda and I've been a Policy Council representative for Makawao El. I've been in this
program for three years with the Head Start Program. The Head Start program helped me and
my family in lots of ways. It gave me security to know that my children will be in a safe
environment and the staff is very friendly and caring. This program gave me lots of resources to
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use when I needed it. It helped me get back on my feet and a full-time job. This program also
helped my older son transition into kindergarten with lots of knowledge of the basic things you
are to know. Now that my second son is with this program, he looks forward everyday to go to
school and learn what his older brother knows. We appreciate the support that the Council has
always given us to Head Start, and we ask that you continue to support us by providing funds for
the summer program and extended days. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Justin Dudoit? Justin?
(FROM THE AUDIENCE): ... (inaudible) . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. We wanted to hear you speak but that's okay. Christian Alain .. .
You know who you are. I have a hard time pronounce your last name.
MR. INNELA: Hi, my name is Christian Alain Innela. I am a student at King Kekaulike High School.
I am currently a sophomore. I am part of the astronomy team of Science Olympiad. I enjoy the
experience a lot and I learned many things. It also gave me an opportunity to see something that
I would like to possibly decide as my major. It also allowed me to meet many people that have
many experience with this at the Pukalani astronomy center here. Also, the Science Olympiad is
a great project. It helps learn many different sciences. It broadens your horizons as to what you
can learn. Also, Science Olympiad is a great opportunity for everyone. Everyone should be able
to maybe get a chance at it. This year, we didn't do as well as we did here in regionals and State
but we still managed to go there, compete, we had fun, and we had great experience learning,
and that's all. I hope you guys can continue to fund our program for King Kekaulike High
School and the rest of the Maui and the other islands of Hawaii. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Christian? None, thank you. Mario
Canol. Mario will be followed by Shyla Nikaido.
MR. CANOL: Hello, my name is Mario Canol. I am a student at King Kekaulike High School. I am
currently a sophomore. I am part of the Science Olympiad team. I am Christian's teammate for
the astronomy team. I am thanking the Maui Economic Board for funding this great program
because it gives like after school we have a lot of fun studying about things we like and enjoy,
and hopefully study for it later on at college. It's a great, I guess you can call it a hobby, where
you can actually meet great people like, as Christian said, we go to the astronomy center here in
Pukalani. We meet great people and it's a great experience all together. And I would also like to
add that we ended up in the fourth place for the astronomy competition state-wide for our first
year. That was our first year trying and we felt that even though we didn't win the medal, it was
still a win for us. So, thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good job.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, good job, thank you. Congratulations! Shyla Nikaido followed by
Chloe Nakagawa.
MS. NIKAIDO: Hi, my name is Shyla Nikaido and I attend King Kekaulike High School. I am
currently a sophomore, and I really think that Science Olympiad has opened a lot of doors and
opportunities for the students. And it really helped all of us to see what we would like to do in
the future. It just encourages students too. I think everybody just had a lot of fun. We tried our
best and we kind of want you to continue to support us throughout our high school years. So
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Chloe . . . or Shyla? Chloe
Nakagawa followed by Lisa Rodrigues.
MS. NAKAGAWA: Hello, I am Chloe Nakagawa and I am currently a sophomore at King Kekaulike.
I am also a member of the Science Olympiad team and I want to say that it was a really fun
opportunity. I learned a lot of great things. And it was really fun going down to Oahu and
competing, and it was a great opportunity for any . . . so I want to humbly ask you to continue
our support our Science Olympiad team and thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Lisa Rodrigues followed by Shatisha Kauhaahaa.
MS. RODRIGUES: Hi! Good evening. My name is Lisa Rodrigues and excuse me for my notes
because I don't want to forget anything. My name is Lisa Rodrigues. I am the Unit Director at
the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club and I am testifying on behalf of the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui. The Boys and Girls Club of Maui for those who don't know, and I'm sure a lot of you do
know, but just to refresh memories or to let the new Council members know we are a member
based organization and we're catering to youths 9 to 17 years old. However, when you hear my
kids talk you're going to hear that they were members since they were 4 or 7. That's allowed if
they have an older brother or sister to . . . and they're allowed to come to the Club if they have an
older brother or sister. So we're located behind Kalama School and we're open Monday to
Friday from after school until 7 o'clock. And we really depend on MEO transportation to bring
our kids to the Club from our feeder schools. And we have them coming from Pukalani School.
Makawao Elementary, Kula School, King Kekaulike, and Kamehameha Schools. So if it wasn't
for MEO transportation, we'd only have maybe Kalama School kids at the Club. So on behalf of
them, thank you very much for your support of them as well. We also use them for all of our
Club outings. Twice a year they give us . . . whenever we want to do an all Club outing to the
beach or wherever else and we need transportation for them. We currently have 365 members at
our Club. It is more than last year. It's actually more now than it was at the end of the fiscal
year last year. We . . . our core programs are health and life skills, character leadership, sports
and rec., arts and education, and we value fun, ohana, respect, character development and
education. And again, I want to thank you so much for supporting us. Our number one request
is to have the level of funding that we were receiving prior to 2008. We have done, since the
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cuts, we have done more with less but we can do so much more with more, and I really
appreciate what your . . . every year your year after year your support of our organization. I have
some kids who also want to testify on behalf of the organization and tell you what the Club
means to them. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Chatisha
Kauhaahaa followed by Maelee [sic] Inciong.
MS. KAUHAAHAA: Hi, my name is Chatisha Kauhaahaa. I am a ten year old at Pukalani School. I
was four years old when I stepped in the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club. I knew I found my
second home and now I've been a member here for six years. The staff is so nice, generous, and
very kind. We have a lot of club activities, such as, beach, the Hana trip, and hiking to the crater.
They also have outside activities, such as dodge ball, basketball, and flag football. I enjoy
coming here because this is a place for me to see my friends and help the staff I've always been
safe here and always will be. My favorite sport is basketball because it is a running sport and it
keeps me very active. Thank you for taking the time to be here tonight and thank you for
supporting the Boys and Girls Club of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maeleea?
MS. INCIONG: Hi, my name is Maeleea and I'm a 5th grader at Kula School. I am ten years old. I
have been a member since 3rd grade. I was only eight when I became a member of Boys and
Girls Club. I was allowed to come when I was eight because I had two older siblings - one was
13 and one was 12. I love coming to the Club because when I feel down the staff is there for me,
and when I get mad at something or someone they let me say what's on my mind. The best part
of the Club is there are a bunch of different activities and sports. My favorite part is that I just
get to have fun. The staffs here are very nice and even if they're having a bad day. Thank you
for taking the time to listen to my speech tonight. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Thank
you. Just like us, we get bad days too. Next testifier is Liane Tomita followed by Mayci Tomita.
MS. L. TOMITA: Aloha. My name is Liane Tomita. I am a 5th grader at Pukalani Elementary School.
I have been at the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club for a couple of months but they make me feel
like family. My number one favorite thing at the Club is the staff They are really kind and
friendly. To me, the Club is a place where I can have fun and make new friends. Thank you for
taking the time to listen to my speech. Mahalo.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Mayci Tomita followed by Jamie Gomes.
MS. M. TOMITA: Aloha. My name is Mayci Tomita and I am a 12 year old girl that goes to Kalama
Intermediate School. I've been going to the Boys and Girls Club for five months. Every day I
do power hour, and on Thursdays and Fridays I do positive action. Positive action is about
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making you become positive and not going out to do drugs. What this Club means to me is I
belong here and they treat me like family. So, thank you, County Council, and all you guys for
being here. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Jamie Gomes followed by Leah Kinores.
MS. GOMES: Hi, my name is Jamie Gomes and I'm 13 years old. I currently attend Kalama
Intermediate School as an 8th grader. I've been a member at the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club
for five years. The Upcountry Club is where I can find my second family. Every day when I
enter the Club it's like a new adventure for me. Playing sports daily is something I look forward
to. I have consistently been on the Honor Roll Student list thanks to the Power Hour Program
that the Club offers me. The Club is a community service-based program which I am proud to
say that I am president of that Club. I love coming to this Club and hope that you will continue
to support my home away from home. I would like to thank the County Council members for
taking your time to listen to me this evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Leah Kinores followed by Mona Omid.
MS. KINORES: Aloha, County Council. My name is Leah Kinores and I am a 16-year junior at King
Kekaulike High School. I have been a member of the Upcountry Boys and Girls Club since I
was in the 2nd grade. I was seven years old. On February 11, 2011, I was honored with the title
of Youth of the Year representing Maui County. What a feeling! This program really made me
work hard and made me focus on my life. I would like to say thank you for supporting the Boys
and Girls Clubs. If it wasn't for the Boys and Girls Club, I would have never been able to
accomplish this wonderful goal. I love coming to the Club and playing games and helping the
kids with their homework. I enjoy being a mentor to these children. I ask for your kind support
in keeping the doors at the Boys and Girls Clubs open for these children. Mahalo for taking your
time to be here this evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Mona Omid followed by Evanette Turalva.
MS. OMID: Aloha. I'm just here as an individual who has been using MEO transportations. And I
couldn't believe when I moved to Maui from Oahu that such a service existed because every
dollar was so much to me. Sometimes I didn't even have the money to pay for transportation.
I've been having a discounted bus pass in Oahu but having MEO help I was using MEO help
since 2005, moved here in 2004, and I've been in Hawaii for over 15 years. There are many
times when I'm getting my ride in MEO I feel so blessed, loved, and cared for and for someone
such as myself who barely have family and mostly I'm by myself, it means a lot to me. And I
hope more people such as myself get the help that is available for them until I get my feet on the
ground. I am an educated, intelligent person but who is going through hard times every single
month and have barely a hundred dollars to spare every month. So it's a tremendous help. I
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have lots of appointments to go to and I don't know what I would do without MEO. Thank you
so much MEO.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Evanette Turalva.
MS. TURALUA: Good evening, Council members, and thank you for allowing me the opportunity to
speak. My name is Evanette Turalva. Evante is good for some of you. I'm speaking on behalf
of Keiki Kokua. They have a store in Haiku and all the funding goes to help the foster children
and those who have adopted foster kids and whatnot. I come from a background . . . I know the
St. James who are a head of that program. I've known them since 1990 when I was in Kilohana.
I was adopted out of my, from my real family, and you know come from a very dysfunctional
home and ever since then it's been their passion. They've shown so much into my life, so much .
.. you know, they spoke to me and always were concerned for my well-being. Ever since I was
that young I remember seeing just the compassion. And since then, I think I've grown to be a
contributing member to this community. I've also went out and adopt my own son, took him out
of a bad situation but that mostly comes from what I've been through and how they have
supported me with their values, and today through the Keiki Kokua Program I still see them over
extending themselves out into the community and trying to make the most of the little that they
have. So the children are our future and I think that they're going to not only there with most of
the ones that come from dysfunctional families that they need that extra love and attention and
they're doing just that today. I believe that, that would produce a great future to come to the
children. We need your support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. TURALVA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nicole Burrows followed by John Arisumi.
MS. BURROWS: Hi, my name is Nicole Burrows and thank you so much for allowing me to speak on
behalf of Keiki Kokua. I am a volunteer as well as a donator to Keiki Kokua. And all the times
that I've gone out there it's hard to see, not only do they help the kids and their families but they
also help out the community. And it's really hard not to understand how someone who has such
a hard time even making it into town who can't afford it, you know, single parents, the homeless,
they don't have that luxury. They actually can go there buy good clothes to stay warm, put
clothes on the kids back that they're not ashamed of and they have something to be proud of
And they actually boost a lot of their . . . you know they have a rough night, they can go there,
get some warm clothes, let their clothes dry out, you know, it gives them a piece of self-esteem.
At least lets them know that they have some place to go, and it's something that they can afford.
And it's been so vital and so beneficial and the store is a truly irreplaceable asset in that
community and in our communities. And we honestly need more places like it. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. John Arisumi followed by Emily Haines-Swatek.
MR. ARISUMI: Good evening, everybody. My name is John Arisumi. I'm the president of the ILWU
Central Maui Pensions Club and we have about 115 to 125 members. I'm here this evening to
thank Maui County and all the Council people for supporting the MEO Program. We need that
support. I know it's hard right now, things are bad but you know I want to thank all of you folks
for all the services you folks provide us. We want to see the . . . we want you folks to support
the Mayor's funding for MEO transportation and also the 500,000 CIP money to build the
transportation facility. As you all know that we were suppose to start building it but we were out
of cash so what we did was we set the money aside and just waiting to see when we can have the
money. Now, MEO provides all the senior citizens get together and gives us advice and gets
speaker for us at our quarterly meeting to educate the senior citizens. Now you can see me I'm
here, I'm standing up. I'm 87 years old and I think that time has come that I have to give up
already because I just feel that I'm getting too old. But MEO also sponsor this Kupuna Aloha
get together to give the senior citizens an opportunity to go and enjoy themselves although we
pay our own but that's okay. Because I think people like myself and lots of people can afford it
and I think we are entitled to something like that but we have people come out from MEO to
help us to get all this excitement going on. Now they also, like I said, they provide speakers for
us at our quarterly meetings, and let me tell you we have some good speakers come over and let
me tell you we have some good speakers come over and give us all kinds of information.
Without MEO I really don't know what we will do, you know, honestly speaking I don't know
what we will do. But as long as we can get some help from you folks, I know it's hard. If you
read the amount of money that they had in the budget for 2010 and 2011, they're about 100
million short; I think if I read it correctly. Now, I don't know what can be done to get the money
but do the best you can for us. How's that! Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. Members, any questions for Mr. Arisumi? Seeing none.
Emily Haines Swatek followed by Amber Starr.
MS. HAINES-SWATEK: Good evening. My name is Emily Haines-Swatek and I'm testifying in
behalf of MEDB. As a teacher at Kekaulike for the last 12 years working with Maui Economic
Development Board has been a highlight of my career. They have provided my students with so
many opportunities, from technology training in different advance software, attending
conferences, and the opportunities to explore technology careers in Hawaii. Last year, I had
seven former students holding paid internship positions down at the Tech Park in Kihei and that
experience was because they participated in so many opportunities that Maui Economic
Development Board provided for them while they were in high school. It opened the door.
These students hopefully will be coming back to participate in their Kama'aina Come Home
Program as well as to get our local kids back working in technology careers here. Even though
they're women in technology they do support all students, provide them with opportunities too.
My current students they're sponsoring two minority males to attend an engineering camp in
Ohio this summer. So they really do look at equal access for all, which includes improving
opportunities for women but also minority students as well. The MEDB team, if you don't know
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them, are an amazing group of women and a few males as well, but they're a great team and they
really, really care about providing opportunities for student on Maui. And they've done a
tremendous amount of . . . put a lot of time and money into supporting the education system
when they really, you know, to State organization they don't have to but they really truly believe
in it. What I think they're doing for kids I think is great in supplementing their education.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Amber
Starr followed by Markus Speidel.
MS. STARR: Good evening, Council members. Thank you for this opportunity to testify today. My
name is Amber Starr and I'm speaking on behalf of the East Maui Watershed Partnership, the
Maui Cattleman's Association, and Hana Ranch. Hana Ranch is a founding member of the East
Maui Watershed Partnership, one of the founding members. Maui has been a model for
coordinated watershed management in the State of Hawaii, and Maui County has been a leader in
recognizing the cultural, biological economic value our watersheds provide as well as the threats
that face our precious resources. Active management to protect our watersheds is so very
important for now and the future. Please continue to support the beneficial work being done by
all of our watersheds here in Maui County by encouraging level funding of watershed projects.
Also, earlier this year, Hana Ranch donated land to the County of Maui for the expansion of
Pa' ani Mai Park in Hana. We humbly request that the funds currently set in the budget be kept
intact so that the necessary work with the community can be done to further along this much
anticipated area for the children. The Maui Cattleman's Association is a nonprofit formed to
educate and support livestock producers in Maui County. The Maui County Farm Bureau has
represented our organization through the County grant process for many years. Maui
Cattleman's Association uses these funds to provide educational opportunities and support to our
County's livestock producers. Our name is Maui Cattleman's Association but we do encourage
all to attend and all livestock producers benefit from the work that we do as well as others in the
community. These efforts are important for keeping our industry progressive and productive
further ensuring our County's food security. We thank you for your support of agriculture in
Maui CGunty and ask that you continue to recognize the value of investing our farmers and
ranchers as well as our future farmers and ranchers and the Farm Bureau's Ag in the classroom
program. And lastly, both watershed ecosystems and agricultural resources are threatened by
invasive species. The daunting task undertaken by our Invasive Species Committees our critical
to a healthy future for our County's natural resources. Funding support for these efforts has a
positive return across many levels and across many industries. Mahalo for this opportunity to
testify and for your much recognized dedication to our County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Starr? Seeing none, thanks
again.
MS. STARR: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Markus Speidel followed by Betty DeLima.
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BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center, Social Hall

March 30, 2011

MR. SPEIDEL: Good evening. So I'm one of the lucky science teachers at the high school who gets to
work with the students from the Science Olympiad Team. And I wanted to make clear that
MEDB was really one of the forces that got the regional tournament to be here on Maui.
Without MEDB the students would have had to go to Oahu first to compete and then go back to
compete at the State level. Because of MEDB we had a regional competition here where the
students could compete first and that meant a lot to the students. It gave them a chance to take
science outside of the classroom. They would study afterschool, some had a lot deeper interest,
and we're not just talking sort of the peak students. We're talking all the students got excited
about it even hearing their classmates going to States and coming back winning medals, the
students wore them to school walking down the hall. It was a great opportunity and I hope you
continue to support MEDB so that they can continue to support the Science Olympiad. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Betty DeLima followed by Ron Montgomery.
MS. DeLIMA: Good evening, Council Chair, Council Members. My name is Betty DeLima. I'm
currently the President of Kula Camelia Club, I serve on the Board of Directors of MEO, I am a
Board of Director of AARP, and I'm also a retiree member of UPW Staff First of all, I want to
thank you for all the help that you have given MEO in the past. I ask your support for the
Mayor's budget for MEO . . . for the Head Start Program, the Infant-Toddler Program, the youth
services, and especially transportation. Residents of Maui need all of these services. Seniors are
counting on all of you. Without your help these programs could not exist and many seniors
would be left alone at home and very lonely. Again, we ask you all to help MEO in their request
for their funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Ron Montgomery followed by Leonard Hasse.
MR. MONTGOMERY: Aloha, Council members and mahalo, Chair, for the opportunity to testify this
evening. My name is Ron Montgomery and I am the current president of the Kula Community
Association. You should have our recommendations that we handed out earlier but I want to
briefly address three of them that benefit our community at-large. The first is the safety of our
students. We are requesting that $200,000 be set aside in the Department of Public Works to do
an engineering study for the creation of sidewalks near, from King Kekaulike High School down
to the Superette, the Pukalani Superette, excuse me. And also to study the implementation of
sidewalks near the Haleakala Waldorf School. The KCA has been in discussions with
developers in both locations and also with our State Representative. The developers have
offered to donate land to do sidewalks and the State Representative is putting in a placeholder for
capital improvement funds for this work but the lead needs to be taken by the County. And so
we're requesting that this money be set aside for the Department to do this engineering study.
The second thing that I would like to discuss is road improvements. We know that there are
monies set aside for road improvements but what we are recommending or requesting is money
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set aside to develop an objective way where I have a lot of Kula neighbors who think that their
roads are the worst roads in Maui County. And maybe they are, but the point is it would be nice
to be able to say my road is the worst one and be able to compare it to those in Lahaina or
Hansen Road or some other road and get a feel for what really is the priorities. And I think that
as a community we should work towards that and do the best for the most need. God that sounds
socialistic. Excuse me. And the final one is community police officer. I understand that the
Police Department is currently interviewing for a position Upcountry but Upcountry is beginning
to face its own individual problems. We had an increase in graffiti recently. We have other
issues and I would like to request and encourage you to make sure that that money is in place to
make sure that that position is filled. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Leonard Hasse followed by Kevin Kealoha.
MR. HASSE: Good evening, Council members. My name is Leonard Hasse. I live on Piiholo Road.
I've been here approximately four times this last four or five years. I want to, first, thank you all
for the support you've given the Olinda-Piiholo area in fixing our roads. I want to report that the
work is not done. Despite all of the hard work that you put into it, especially Mike Molina, we
only got part of the roads fixed. I have three issues that I'd like to bring forth that I am seeking
your assistance in some. First is the road section on Upper Piiholo and Olinda roads. This
section of road goes through State property. In 2004, the residents in the area submitted a
petition to get the Piiholo-Olinda roads repaired. They've been neglected since they were
constructed. The Council came forth and provided funds. The first funds provided could hardly
touch the repairs that were needed. We got another funding, that didn't do it and when the
repairs were made in 2008 we were informed that the section on Upper Piiholo on Olinda roads
were State property and nothing was done. This section of road has one major problem. That's
the root system from the pine trees that were planted to control the gorse. In 1989 or 1990,
Hannibal Tavares paved the road . . . County paving. The State properly planted pine trees to
control the gorse and all they've done is send roots out under the road and they've torn up the
road. It has not been repaired, has not been touched since 1988 or 1989 when it was put down.
We've requested . . . I've requested support from Senator English, Representative Yamashita,
and the Department of Land and Natural Resources. We've gotten promises but no action. I
sent you all an email, a copy of the email that I put out in 2007 with pictures on it to show the
conditions of the road. I sent it to you last week so that you would have this for reference in case
you needed to take a look what the pictures looked like. I would suggest you leave Makawao
town, go up Olinda Road, you gotta take this route if you want to get maximum effect, drive up
Olinda and come down Piiholo Road. The road has gotten worse.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. HASSE: Okay. Three conditions, three things need to be done. Identify who owns the property,
come out with a maintenance program, and develop a root abatement program so that these new
roots can be taken care of Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Hasse at this time? Seeing none,
thank you very much for your testimony. Kevin Kealoha followed by Maggie. . . I'm just going
to say Maggie.
MR. KEALOHA: My name is Kevin Kealoha speaking on behalf of the B.E.S.T. program at MEO.
Just recently got out of prison for I don't even know how many times but finally from word of
mouth I heard about this program. I was kind of like really set on changing my life this time
doing what's right. I never really had a shot at it before but since the first day I got out
everybody at the program helped me get everything I needed, you know what I mean, all the
small little steps - ID, birth certificate, license, help me make my appointments to probation, to
court. Right now, I'm on a special services probation. My probation officer over there says zero
tolerance last chance already you're going back to prison for a long time. I just really appreciate
everything that the B.E.S.T. program did for me. I've got a job now. I've got a place to live.
They're helping me get my own place. I just bought a car yesterday. I never would have had
any shot at even making it living this as I did without this as honestly you know what I mean.
And I appreciate you folks supporting that program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Kevin. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Maggie Prevenas followed by Yuki Lei Sugimura.
MS. PREVENAS: Hello. My name is Maggie Prevenas you got that. My kids, my students call me
Mrs. P., now you know. I've taught 7th grade students science on Maui since 2003. I had a lot
of students as well when they were much younger. I love what I do; I truly do. And when I take
my online professional development classes people from the mainland they get on the blogs and
they go you live on Maui? Do you know how lucky you are? I do. But not for the reasons that
they think of, for the reasons that I'm about to tell you. I sat down to write the number of
reasons why I am happy to be a part of the individuals that receive wonderful benefits from Maui
Economic Development Board. And I stopped at eight. I'm just one teacher. I teach 147 7th
graders. At my school, there are over 800 students and all of them have the opportunities that
I'm about to share with you. For example, MEDB offers large educational grants to classroom
teachers such as myself for transportation, hardware, software, teacher training for new software.
Why? To plant seeds. MEDB sponsors field trips totally paid for, for students in the 6th, 7th
and 8th grade. These are middle-schoolers. Taking them to scientific conventions, why? To
plant seeds. They plan and have provided support to bring together all middle-schoolers in Maui
County including Molokai, and Lanai for creative problem solving engineering competition
called Engineering in the Middle. The winners of that competition are sponsored to attend the
University of Hawaii Manoa junior engineering symposium. The Calista, that's what my boys
made. It's a marshmallow launcher. No. 4, introduce a girl to engineering day providing girls
and young men, if they want to be a part of it, I often ask why there's all these girls, and some of
them say yeah, but anyway, why do they offer this? To plant seeds. There are many, many
programs that they offer and I want you to know that as a teacher in the D.O.E. I could not do
any of these things without the support of Maui Economic Development Board. Thank you.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
Mayor Hannibal Tavares Community Center, Social Hall

March 30,2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Is that patent? Thank
you. Yuki Lei Sugimura followed by Gerry Ross.
MS. SUGIMURA: Good evening, everyone and so wonderful to be here. I want to say you all have a
very hard job just listening to all the testimonies. Such wonderful programs and I want to
commend all of you -- Maui County is so special now you know why just listening to everyone
here. I am here to represent Festivals of Aloha. I am the County Coordinator for Festivals of
Aloha. We are a 60 plus tradition that started with Aloha Week, Aloha Festivals and we
currently are called Aloha Festivals on Maui County. Last year, we added on the island of
Kahoolawe onto our islands. We hold events in your communities, all your different islands and
I think last year I counted we did over 30 events in your various communities. And I want to say
that your funding that you provide Festivals of Aloha not only provides the opportunity for our
events to go to your islands but it also provides economic, an economic engine for the tent
rentals and the entertainment and the different people, the crafters, and the food booths that are
all part of this. So in our small way, we are trying to become greater parts of the community.
We also are a Hawaii Tourism Authority is one of our sponsors also but we try to bring our
events to the hotels. So we provide an experience with our host culture for the visitors and the
residents to be partners also. Thank you very much and I really appreciate all of you. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Thanks.
Gerry Ross followed by Harlan Hughes.
MR. ROSS: Aloha, Councilors. Thank you for coming out this evening. My name is Gerry Ross and
I'm the co-farmer on Kupa'a Farms, which is at the bottom of Naalae Road. It's an organic farm
in Kula and we grow food for people that live here on Maui. I'm also a member of the Maui
County Farm Bureau, the past president of the Maui Coffee Association, the Chair of the
Agriculture in the Classroom Program that the Maui County Farm Bureau runs, and an avid
supporter of Maui Aloha Aina Association. We hear the words sustainability, local food, selfsufficiency bandied about these days. In order to meet these goals, we need a strong agricultural
base. In contrast, we're seeing cuts of 15 percent to the Farm Bureau budget and 60 percent to
the Maui Aloha Aina budget in the Mayor's proposed budget. These seem counter-productive to
the goals of self-sufficiency on the Valley Isle. I'll comment on a couple of things that these
funds have supported this year, things that will be negatively impacted by the proposed cuts.
The Maui Coffee Association has used their funding to host seminars by compost and coffee
guru Bob Schafer who is based in both the Big Island and California. Mr. Schafer was the
featured speaker at a very well-attended workshop on the care and maintenance of coffee
orchards, and he was also the featured speaker and partner with CTAHR Oahu to present a
workshop called compost manao which was held on our farm, a day-long workshop, that was
attended by over 80 participants from Maui, very well attended. Maui Coffee Association also
maintains a portal or website for all things coffee related in Maui. We also put out this nice map
that I've handed out to you that show the distribution of farmers as well as places to get your cup
of Joe which is, hopefully, Maui grown. And I've also given you a handout for an upcoming
workshop we're going to have in a couple of weeks at the Kula Community Center. We also
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help sponsor the State cupping trials and we've taken the lead role in recognizing the upcoming
bi-centennial of coffee in Hawaii. You may ask the question, has this made a difference? Maui
coffees have placed in the top ten coffees in Hawaii. In each of the last two cupping trials, and
last year a Maui coffee came in second beating all of the Kona coffees which places Maui coffee
in the upper echelon of coffee quality not only in Hawaii but globally. So your help and support
has made a big difference allowing Maui coffee farmers to really improve their product. As
Chairman of the Agriculture and the Classroom Program for Farm Bureau, I've helped guide the
program from two classes of second graders about five years ago to over 50 classes of second
graders this year across the island meaning the word about agriculture, seeds, farming, and where
our food comes from has been presented to over a thousand children and their teachers on this
island just this year. Maui Aloha Aina Association provides a key resource for organic
agriculture on Maui and brings world class speakers to their conference in Olinda. They have
played a pivotal role in bringing Korean natural farming techniques to Maui, something which
will boost our food production while decreasing our dependents on off-island inputs. Agriculture
continues to be an essential part of the Maui landscape and I ask that the Council try their best to
maintain rather than cut funding to those organizations that serve agriculture on our island.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Harlan Hughes followed by Melissa Rupert.
MR. HUGHES: Good evening. I'm Harlan Hughes and I thank all you folks for being here, and being
here Upcountry so we don't all have to go down to the County Council building. I'm speaking
on behalf of MEO and Maui Boys and Girls Club. I have two granddaughters that go to Kula
Elementary School as did their mother. Both parents work in Pukalani. They can't be there for
the kids after school. Boys and Girls Club is as you saw on their shirts - a positive place for kids.
This is a very positive place for kids. I've seen this . . . (inaudible) . . . kids spoke of it. They are
planting positive seeds. This creates a wonderful environment for the children and it's food for
the mind. Now there's a lot of other seeds out there that aren't so positive and a lack of a place
like the Boys and Girls Club those other seeds can grow instead. Without MEO to get the kids
there, as Lisa was saying, there is going to be only one school instead of five going there. If
you're going to have all this good stuff happening for these kids, if the kids can't get there, this
ain't going to be happen. So this is a partnership. It's like lomi salmon and poi they go well
together. You gotta have the kids get there or they can't have this experience. This is a very
positive experience. We all see a lot of non-positive things going on in the community and the
Boys and Girls Club is one of the things we need to have to create a positive atmosphere for our
kids. And as I said, without MEO -- how are they going to get there? So, please consider this.
If we don't support our children . . . if we don't support our children getting there, while as the
old saying goes, you know, you can have a paper ounce of prevention or a pound of cure. Let's
pay for the prevention and not to have to pay for the cure later.
CHAIR PONTANNILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Thank
you. Melissa Rupert followed by Jim Crowe.
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MS. RUPERT: Good evening. My name is Melissa and I'm 60 years old and I never thought I'd end up
homeless for over three months. Thank God for MEO. They helped me with my rent so I would
be able to rent a studio. They taught me how to budget. They taught me how to repair my credit.
Please continue the funding for MEO Housing Assistance program. They provide such a needed
service to the people of Maui County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you again. Jim
Crowe followed by Kathleen Phillips.
MR. CROWE: Good evening, Council Members, thanks for being here. I'm representing the Kula
Community Association, and I'm here testifying on behalf of the proposed bus route like from
across the street up to Kula Hospital. There's been lots of back and forth, lots of
communications on it. In fact, the Director of Transportation brought a bus up at the request of
the Association and took the proposed route up to the hospital. On the bus also was Al Phillips
here from AARP because he is a retired CDL driver so he was very helpful on the route. In the
Association, I'm on the Committee for Kupuna Resources. So I'm interested of course and this
bus being available, this route being available for seniors. MEO does the house-to-house but this
would be really good for other seniors. I talked about this a year ago how devastating it is
personally for a senior who suddenly can't drive anymore. You know, we just get in our car and
go somewhere and people have done that all their lives and suddenly for some small reason they
can't drive anymore. So this would be a really help for them . . . just to get a little lift to the bus
route and down the hill. There are other senior drivers who properly feel safe driving their own
neighborhood but not all the way downtown, and I think that's a good idea and it would help
them as well. But not only seniors but all the other age groups. I see kids walking down the
Kula Highway with their ocean gear and I'm thinking they're just walking along that really
speeding highway and they've got their ocean gear and where they're going, how they're going
to get down there. They probably hitch-hike and all about that stuff. So it would be a really
good help for the kids that live way up there to be able to jump on a bus, connect right across the
street and head down to the ocean. There's a lot of enthusiasm up here for this route. I talked to
Rebecca at HR at Kula Hospital just to tell her I was coming here to talk about a bus route. She
said, whoa, that would be wonderful in that kind of a voice. And then I talked to Ray
Yamamoto, the manager at Longs, and he said, whoa, that would be fantastic. So, please keep
this on your radar. We really would like to have it. Thanks again for being here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Thank
you. Kathleen Phillips.
MS. PHILLIPS: Good evening. My name is Kathleen Phillips. I live here in Pukalani and I am
president for the AARP Chapter. Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to share with you
my concerns. First, I'd like to thank you all for the support that you have given the seniors in the
past. And I ask again for that support. Here are some of my concerns: Senior issues are a
number one concern. I would like to see the MEO bus services remain with MEO and not
another vendor. The MEO employees are people of compassion and are well-trained in dealing
with senior needs. Roberts on the other hand, is a bus service for tourists, et cetera. I have heard
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many complaints about the type of service rendered to our seniors and to our disabled. MEO has
worked this transportation down to a science. Why is the County trying to reinvent the wheel?
Seniors who are unable to drive or are disabled want to continue to be of service to our State and
County facilities but need your help by continuing their bus service to get there. At present, if I
am correct, the Ala Hou Program is the one that's contracted for Upcountry. This service, I
believe, can be done much better by the MEO staff, and I've heard from so many seniors that
have told me -- they hurt me, they don't even know how to put me into the darn thing. Number
two, Roberts charges twice the amount compared to what the Ala Hou Program. So please take
that into consideration. As President for AARP, I do realize that money is tight. However, it is
important that seniors get out. Senior excursions are necessary. I have been one that have
visited and taken seniors out, and you know when you're home bound sometimes or as you get
older you get so set in your ways. But when you come to take them out, you see a smile on their
face. That's what it's all about. And MEO knows what it's all about. These trips allow seniors
to get out of their homes, mingle with friends and see what's out there. This keeps them going in
a positive mode. Another concern is the bus transportation Upcountry. I ask, number one,
consider what the needs are -- things like golf courses and parks are great but at this moment
services comes first. With all of that, that's number one, and also the best program guys. Give
those guys a chance after they come out. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you. Scott
Obley.
MR. OBLEY: Good evening, my name is Scott Obley and I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui
Economic Development Board. And I just want to let you know that we really appreciate the
work that you do as well. I know you invest a lot of time and energy on behalf of the community
and we thank you for that. I work at the Wailea Beach Marriott Resort and Spa where I'm the
Director of Group Sales so I'm very familiar with the visitor industry and how fragile it can be.
The Maui Economic Development Board, their mission is to diversity to help us see new
pathways, create new pathways to a more diverse economy, to create jobs where our keiki can
stay, live here on the island and have a sustainable job here on Maui, and we really appreciate the
work that they do. One of the things that they do is put on the Amos Technical Conference every
year. That conference perhaps somewhat ironically actually fills up our hotel for seven days and
allows us to have 400 people at work instead of maybe 150 or 200, which we would typically
have in the month of September. So I'm here just to again say that the Maui Economic
Development Board and their efforts towards diversifying our local economy I think is extremely
valuable, and I encourage you to continue to support them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. The next testifier is Annie Trygstad.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Committee. My name is Anne Trygstad, I'm a
registered nurse, and I'm currently a faculty member at the University of Hawaii - Maui College
in the Nursing Program, though I'm here as a concerned citizen and a representative for the
Aging With Aloha Coalition. First, I'd like to thank the Council for funding the Aging With
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Aloha Coalition for several years. Some of the positive programs that have come out of the
Aging With Aloha Coalition include the going home program that has saved the State over $70
million starting in Maui. It's gone statewide. It's helped move over a thousand people that were
wait listed in hospitals throughout the State to home and community-based services. It helped
create a high school project that has allowed 150 high school students to take out a class in a .. .
a series of classes in health care for careers and many of them are already headed to Maui
College to join the Nursing Program. The Council also funded a nurse-aide grant program for
three years that allowed us to build nurse-aid workforce on Maui since there was a huge storage.
A hundred nineteen people have graduated from that and over 75 percent are now working in the
health care field, and that was funded by the Council so we're very grateful. We're still facing a
tsunami of aging; it's critical. We're also facing a shortage of health care workforce. This paper
was handed out to you. Nationwide the baby boomers are at 80 million per nation. They're 30
percent of Maui County's population and the workforce that is going to be supporting them is
half of that -- 44 million. And besides that, not only do we have a shrinking workforce but our
youth are leaving the island so we're requesting that you continue to fund the Aging With Aloha
Coalition, which at this point has taken 100 percent cut in the budget. And unfortunately, we
have been given $100,000 grant from the Federal government that is currently in procurement
with the Department of Human Services, and unless we are able to match those funds we will
lose that money. And that money was going to be provided to create a program for family
caregivers. Some of the other projects that we also helped with is a building project called
Makahana Ka Ike building project in Hana where the youth in Hana built 22 ramps for seniors
there. So those are some of the projects we've been involved in and we're requesting that you
continue to fund us. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We don't have that information that you told us that we had so . .
. we got it? Okay, Staff has it. So, Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Alan Kaufman . . . followed by Herminio Pante.
MR. KAUFMAN: Aloha. I'm here . . . Alan Kaufman as a veterinarian who lives Upcountry. And I
want to preface my remarks by saying I really appreciate being able to address a Council that's
not divided into factions, to be able to look at a group of Council members who leave their egos
in the parking lot, and who are prepared to work with the Administration for the benefit of our
County. Thank you. My initial remarks are as a member of the Board of the Kula Community
Association. We've talked about water for years. We'd like to do something about it. Water is
the highest priority providing water meters for those on the Upcountry Water Meter Waiting
List. It is the highest priority for the Kula Community Association Board of Directors. We
encourage the Council and the Mayor to work together and accomplish this within the next two
years and to provide dependable, quality water while preparing for future demands. That's the
end of my remarks as a member of the Board. I'd like to point out to you as an individual that
you're right it's not rocket science. You capture it, you store it, you pump it and you transmit it.
That's all you've got to do. I'd love to think that two years from now people who have been
waiting 20 years or longer, people who want to give land to their children with water on it rather
than a dry piece of the rock will be able to do that. All you've got to do, you're a great group of
people, if you will just work together and work with our Mayor I sincerely believe that it can
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happen. Continuing to speak as an individual the Administration has determined that funds are
available for a one shot infusion into this budget. This is the time to spend those funds. I'm a
veterinarian and people come into the veterinarian's office and sometimes I think I should have
been a bartender because I get to hear all the stories. You'll read in the paper that things are
getting better. They may be getting better if you look at the numbers but if you listen to the
people who come in and talk to you, you know there is a still a tremendous amount of pain out
there. You can help with that and all you've got to do, you've heard so many of the nonprofits
speak tonight, the human service agencies, they need your help and all you need to do is to
provide the funding that is in the budget, and I respectfully request that you do that. This is the
time to spend those funds that are available. Sitting on them will not end the recession. Times
may be getting better but we need the money put into our economy now and the money is there.
Mahalo nui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Herminio Pante? Members, Herminio is going to be the last testifier for this half and we'll
take a five-minute recess and then we'll reconvene five minutes after Herminio's . . . go ahead.
MR. PANTE: Good evening, everyone. My name is Herminio Pante and I'm speaking on behalf of the
MEO Reintegration Prison Program - B.E.S.T. Program. It is a big thing for me tonight to stand
over here. It's quite nervous. Never done this before but I'd like to say thank you very much for
your funding for MEO and for helping us out. MEO has helped me come back out to the
community. Without the funding, I don't think that we have the right programs to actually get
all the documents that we need, get a job, get a birth certificate, and I'm thankful today that I'm
actually driving legally, you know. I'm not looking over my shoulder anymore and I'm happy.
MEO has opened so much doors for me that it helped me see another life, a productive one.
People inside they don't have that much support when they come out. And the B.E.S.T. Program
is the only program that's willing to help the inmates that's coming out. Without the B.E.S.T.
Program I don't think they would stand a chance out here. Speaking from me standing here on
my own two feet. MEO has helped me stand on my own two feet, build me a foundation to stand
on, and actually come out tonight and speak to everyone over here. So this is a big change for
me to be a part of this and there's more brothers coming home and they're going to need this
funding from you guys here. So, I'm asking that you guys keep the funding to MEO so you can
bring them home and give them an opportunity to stand on their own feet. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, we're going to take a five-minute break and then
we'll reconvene. When we reconvene the next testifier will be Richard Lucas. Ladies and
gentlemen, there are refreshments in the back so just go ahead and help yourself. This meeting is
in recess. ... (gavel).. .
RECESS: 7:31 p.m.
RECONVENE:

7:40 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. The next testifier is Richard Lucas followed by David Lundasi [sic]. Okay, Mr.
Lucas. Please . . . (gavel). . . okay, thank you.
MR. LUCAS: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, my name is Richard Lucas. I am the Program
Manager for Friends of Old Maui High School in Hamakuapoko. It is . . . it means a lot to the
members of the community that you've taken time out of your busy schedule to come here
tonight and we certainly appreciate it. I appear here tonight on behalf of over 4,500 alumni of
old Maui High School who weren't able to make it tonight as well as a large number of
community supporters in volunteers to say "thank you" to the Mayor and to the Council for
including us again in the 2012 Budget. As many of you already know, Friends of Old Maui High
School has been moving forward for the preservation, rehabilitation, and reuse of the old Maui
High School campus since 2005. The 23 acre campus in Hamakuapoko is not only an important
historical site but it's also a very valuable County asset. With the assistance of County grant
funds in the current year, we have been able to secure over $36,000 worth of volunteer labor and
in-kind contributions to move our project forward. We not only maintain and repair the campus
and the existing buildings but we also move forward the purposes of the master plan, which is to
eventually redevelop and reuse the campus as the Patsy Takemoto Mink Center. We have been
able to secure amendments to the Governor's Executive Order which allows us to broaden the
uses of the campus and we've applied for land use amendments which will widen the educational
mission of the site. We have already completed and submitted a preliminary environmental
assessment on the site. Plans and construction drawings for the rehabilitation of the
Administration building have been completed and approved. Additionally, an implementation
plan for upgrading the infrastructure at the campus have been completed and submitted. We are
pleased that we continue to receive such broad-based community support. In 2009, the
rehabilitation of the Old Maui High School campus finished as runner up in the category of Best
Use of County Funds in the annual best of Maui survey. We are pleased for the assistance that
we have received from Maui County. We hope that eventually the Old Maui High School
campus will become an important resource that will benefit all of the residents of Maui County,
so I am here tonight simply to say, thank you for your continued support for this important
project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you, again,
Richard.
MR. LUCAS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: David Lindsay followed by Dana Jones.
MR. LINDSAY: Thank you, Council members. I'm going to read this so I won't get off track. As an
Olinda resident for most of my 75 years and past president of the Olinda Community
Association, I'm finding it difficult to stand up here and address you in a manner of aloha. I've
been doing it too long. Every year other residents and I ask that attention be paid to the real
safety hazards in the upper section of Olinda and Piiholo Roads. I am not whining about
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standard bumpy, back country roads, which we all have. That's no problem. I'm speaking of
genuine safety concerns caused by tree roots under the pavement. It should not be hard to
imagine on either road, that many of the worse bumps are located near blind curves causing
drivers to steer into possible oncoming traffic or having the steering wheel jerk the driver off
track. I seriously consider two or three of these to be "axil busters", to unsuspecting drivers.
Now we get a lot of tourists coming up there looking for Haleakala believe it or not. But folks,
I'm not expecting or asking for a complete, new, paved job. I do, however, want the hazard
situation rectified. No, it will not be cheap but someone will likely pay a steep price if the
situation isn't addressed. At least give us the courtesy of a response. Each time I've spoken, I
have asked that some of you at least drive up Olinda and down Piiholo, at least once, preferably
with a safety engineer in tow. I've never heard once that anyone ever bothered to make that trip
and report on what they found. Thank you for hearing me out and I hope this time somebody
will do what we've asked and go up there and see for themselves. It is dangerous.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Lindsay? Seeing none, thank
you very much. Next testifier is Dana Jones followed by Jessica Foster.
MR. JONES: I thank you. My name is Dana Jones. I live in Upper Olinda. I've been up there since
1988. The roads as David just said Upper Piiholo, Olinda Road, when you're driving up there
it's routine to have oncoming traffic in your lane because they're trying to minimize damage to
their own vehicle. It would be worth just taking a drive up Olinda Road down Piiholo Road and
I think the matter would be obvious to you. It's a matter of public safety. School buses are on
that road. And it gets really crazy when it rains when you've got tourist traffic. It would be nice
if the worse parts of the road could be fixed. I realize there's not enough money for a complete
repaving job but if the worse parts of the road could be fixed. It's a matter of public safety.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Jessica Foster followed by James St. James.
MS. FOSTER: Good evening, Council members. My name is Jessica Foster and I'm a science teacher
at Kekaulike High School. This evening I'd like to give testimony on behalf of the Maui
Economic Development Board - Women in Technology Program in addition to speaking on
behalf of the teachers and students at the Kekaulike Complex schools. This past year, the Maui
Economic Development Board - Women in Technology Program provided funding to hold a
local regional tournament here for Maui County at UH - Maui College, which gave our students
here at Kekaulike High School in addition to other high school students on the island, an
opportunity to compete in the Science Olympiad Program. This program gives students an
opportunity to explore future job opportunities and to pursue interest they might not otherwise
have ever encountered within a standard high school curriculum. Additionally, as you've heard
from several of our representatives and members before our particular school did very well at the
regional tournament here on Maui as well as proceeding to State which was a phenomenal and
tremendous opportunity for our students here locally. The second testimony I'd like to give
today again as a teacher, with the recent cuts in State funding for various programs one of the
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programs that has been impacted is the school transportation program. And with each cut we
find more and more students having to walk greater and greater distances along the shoulder of
the highway, if the shoulder even exists at all. Days that it's raining it's not uncommon to see
students actually walking on the roadway, you know, to avoid getting wet. So I would like you
to please consider the proposal for the installation of sidewalks here for our school complex, not
only would it benefit our students and provide a safe way to and from school but it also benefits
other members of the community as well. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Jim St. James followed by Alda St. James.
MR. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Councilors. I'm here today to represent foster children who we can't
bring up here to testify unfortunately. A couple years ago I gave a visual presentation because I
thought it would have more impact, some of you might recall that. And I'm going to have a redo
of that, an encore performance. One of the earlier programs that Keiki Kokua started was
actually a luggage drive that supported foster kids on the move for giving them back packs as
luggage. Before this foster children on Maui County would literally travel with their . . . all their
belongings in plastic bags and pretty much look like this . . . that went from foster home to foster
home and also to school and back. With Keiki Kokua they have pride. They have back packs,
they have suitcases and they could move even with kids in transit going to different islands and
transitioning out the system to the mainland, we give them large suitcases and help them move
on. That's only one of the programs. I brought a few more visuals for the others. Our Keiki
Kokua line has taken in over 300 calls in the past year for support and referrals to other agencies,
helping foster parents, adopt-a-parents, and guardianship parents understand how they can get
help especially grandparents raising grandkids how do you get your kid in special ed, how do
you sign the papers, all that. We do that every day we get calls. Okay, we have a free service
listing on our Internet and foster parents and adopt-a-parents, legal guardians, and grandparents
can get free services from local businesses and providers, store owners, professionals who give
free services to foster parents and foster kids free tutoring services, free ukulele services, free
haircuts to children and teenagers. A lot of these kids need haircuts too really. A Keiki Kokua
Thrift store gives all foster parents discounts - 30 percent if they can't afford it free and to foster
children too. So whatever they need we supply them. This is my hat; this is what we got from
foster kids. For any kids who want it, we get them supplies. We also have free horseback riding
but I didn't bring any horses with me. Our social events, we have our pizza party on the beach in
the summer where all the foster parents and kids come together as ohana. At Christmastime,
which is really the toughest time for foster kids .. .
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. ST. JAMES: I'll really go fast. We have the teenage Christmas party where kids all come to the
Grand Wailea for a day and they get presents, they get a free dinner, and they get together during
a bad time. And lastly and probably the most important is at the Thrift Store we not only just
provide money for our programs but we have youth service programs. We hired foster kids last
year, gave them money, gave them training, gave them a resume, gave them hope to get into the
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real world. We want to expand that program this year so we can give them money and give them
some real experience to get into the real world. That's one of our main projects that we really
want to do. And it all comes down to money we're really trying to train these kids and we have
community service and other things going on. So, thank you very much for bearing with me and
thank you for your help over the years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Good job. Alda St.
James followed by Tracy A. Jones.
MS. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council members. I told him he's going to be a hard act to follow.
I'm Alda St. James. I'm Executive Director of Keiki Kokua, and I am honored that you have
seen fit to include Keiki Kokua in the Mayor's budget. Tonight I will read testimony from Patty
Paranada who could not be here tonight. She is the Maui Coordinator of ROKK which stands for
Raising Our Keikis Keiki. It's a support group for grandparents who are raising their
grandchildren. Patti Rice - being a grandparent raising my three grandchildren has been quite a
journey. There are challenges and there are challenges. My husband and I were hoping for a
nice quite retirement and plans on traveling and just simply sharing retirement together. Well,
that quickly changed when we became the legal guardians of our grandchildren. The
grandparents support group consists of special caring loving people. I have total respect for
grandparents and caregivers because of the many sacrifices they make. They are challenges and
joys; however, lots and lots of support is needed for grandparents and caregivers. They go by
different names - legal guardians, adopt-a-parents, foster parents, however, they are all
wonderful people making a change in other people's lives. Keiki Kokua has supported many,
many families by their wonderful efforts to provide services to these families. The Keiki Kokua
staff displays their passion for people by sharing many hours of their time servicing these
families. Their countless hours of dedication to their mission has helped so many children and
their families to try and have a normal and healthy lifestyle where they wouldn't be any without
Keiki Kokua. Keiki Kokua provides a service to our community that is so vital. They assist
families in many ways. I have seen first-hand how Keiki Kokua put on functions for families to
get together and have fun. Keiki Kokua helped our grandparents that are in the ROKK group to
help successfully nurture their grandchildren. The grandparents look forward to Keiki Kokua's
fun activities that they do. My grandchildren, my husband, and myself look forward to all the
Keiki Kokua has to provide because it helps us to bond and to have quality time together. Ohana
or family is so important. We become who we are from our ohana. If we did not have ohana,
then we would get lost. Keiki Kokua is a way for the lost to come and belong again. Their
support toward foster, adopt of legal guardian, parents and grandparents has been very successful
in the past years. We support Keiki Kokua and we pray that this service to our families in the
community will be able to continue. Thank you for your support. Mahalo, Patty Paranada.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you, again.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tracy A. Jones followed by Pam Farnsworth.
MS. JONES: Hi, good evening. My name is Tracy Jones. I'm the President of the Board of Directors
of Keiki Kokua. Thank you for including us in the Mayor's budget. I, for the past dozen years
or so have worked as an attorney for the State and County. I worked for . . . presently I'm a
Prosecutor. For most of those years I have been a Prosecutor. I took a two year hiatus from
crime to do work at the Attorney General's office, which was in child protection. That's where I
learned about Alda and Jim St. James and Keiki Kokua. I kept hearing their names. At court
when the foster parents would come to the hearings, they were continually referred to well call
the St. James', have you called the St. James', have you contacted the St. James' cause they have
the answer for you. And years later, I came in contact with them and I'm here to tell you their
fully support and ask for your support for the Keiki Kokua programs. As I was stressing about
sitting here tonight I'm on-call and I was thinking if my phone rings I'm going to have to leave
and then I can't tell you what I wanted to tell you but actually that's the life of Keiki Kokua. The
organization lives on-call. They get calls at all hours of the day and night for help and the
turnaround is pretty quick on those calls. The other important unique reason to support Keiki
Kokua is as a nonprofit that fills an important social service niche in the County, they have tried
to stand on their own two feet. We have the Thrift Store and it's a growing business and every
month is better than the next month. So by supporting Keiki Kokua, you're helping us to grow
our business which serves as a foster youth employment program platform, a community service
work place. I'm working on them to start taking in on drug court graduates because I support the
special programs of the court and it will be a great community transition and growing spot, a real
grassroots place that serves the community in several ways. And if you support the business by
supporting Keiki Kokua, we're going to grow and we're going to make money, we're going to
become profitable and one day we're going to come to this meeting or we'll come to one of your
other Council meetings and we'll say, what can we do for you? And that's the true realization of
your support of our organization. We're taking a forward step and that we're not only helping
the community, we're growing a business that helps the community and that's going to be a
promise to you. We're going to come back to you one day and we're going to say, what can we
do for you in partnership to help our community. Thank you for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Tracy?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tracy?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We've been hearing quite a bit about the Keiki Kokua Store.
MS. JONES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you kind of tell us what that store is and where you get your stuff?
You might be able to recruit.
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MS. JONES: Oh. It's all by donation. Feel free to call the Keiki Kokua Store for the drop off in Haiku.
I drop off at Jim and Alda's place in Pukalani. They're my local drop off But they prefer drop
offs at the store. It's a full service thrift store. You can get anything there. I recently purchased
and re-donated a wheel chair for my mom who came visiting. We had a call from one of the
members of our Board of Directors just this week, who said I need a car seat, and we had a brand
new car seat and it was five bucks and in five minutes the need was met. So we have everything
from car seats to wheel chairs, and the snazzy clothing to look good riding in either one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Pam Farnsworth followed by Richard Pohle.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Aloha, Council members. I am Pam Farnsworth, Vice President of the Cameron
Center Board of Directors. On behalf of my fellow Board members, the staff of the Cameron
Center, and the 20 service agency providers housed at the Cameron Center, I would like to thank
the Administration for including a line-item allocation of $90,000 in the County budget to
support the ongoing operations of the Cameron Center, and respectfully request the Council
support this allocation. Over its 30 year history, the Cameron Center has developed and
maintained an effective system for operating a self-sustaining nonprofit community service
facility that provides centrally located affordable office and program space for Maui's nonprofit
health and social service agencies. Until recently, this system has always generated sufficient
income to operate the facility and the Cameron Center has been able to consistently maintain
rental rates at levels 30 to 40 percent below existing market rates. The current member fees
collected from the center resident agency ohanas support 80 percent of the projected operating
expenses for Fiscal Year 2012. And in light of the present market conditions we believe that it is
not in the best interest of our resident agencies to raise our fees to them. We feel that the
agencies will have to respond to such an increase by offsetting services to our community. As a
result of the situation, Cameron Center is projecting a 10 percent shortfall in the 2012 operating
budget. The line item allocation of $90,000 to Cameron Center in the 2012 County budget
represents 50 percent of the total shortfall, and the Cameron Center Board has committed to
securing the remaining amount through fundraising activities over the next year. The funding
from the County will be used to directly support maintenance staff to accomplish ongoing
maintenance and repair work at the Cameron Center. The Council's approval of this allocation
will help ensure that fees for the agencies housed at the Cameron Center will be maintained at
affordable, below market rates, and that this valuable one-of-a-kind community service facility
will continue to provide a home for as many as 20 nonprofit health and social service providers
serving the Maui community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again, Pam. Richard Pohle followed by Patty Hoffman.
MR. POHLE: Greetings! I'm Richard Pohle and welcome to the new Council. I'm the founder of the
Upcountry Meter List Association - UMLA. The goals of UMLA are simply the elimination of
the Upcountry Meter List in its entirety. It is divisive, it is harmful to the people that want to
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build houses Upcountry. It is possibly illegal and very important to this meeting. It has ended
all economic development Upcountry as far as building of houses. Now, I have heard the
testimony and I think you should fund them all. But all that takes money and money comes from
economic development. So I'm also here to inquire about the purchase of Piiholo South Well. I
know before the election that was a hot item. Zachary Franks presented a proposal to sell a well
to the County for 3.7 million and he would hook it up for a total of 8 million. Now, he justified
it on the fact that it would provide with fees for water and meters, it would provide enough
money to fully fund that. And it would spur economic activity and I'll give you my own
personal example. I have three and a half acres at 4,000 feet in Kula. My current property taxes
are $225.00. This is outrageously low and I told the Mayor that. But I have a farm and I'm old.
When I past and if that was subdivided and put in its highest use which was houses for six
families it would bring in $10,000 to 25 vs. 10,000 money that would go to the County as
property taxes irrespective of all the other activities that you could use to fund these worthy
causes. And it gives me great pleasure to say this but I read the correspondence between
Zachary Franks, Cindy Warner and the County, and I can vouch from that they are very sincere
people and you should have very little trouble negotiating with them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again, Richard. Patty Hoffman.
MS. HOFFMAN: Good evening. I'm Patty Hoffman, I am the Financial Director for Hui Malama
Learning Center, and I want to thank you for allowing me to testify on behalf of our agency. Just
to let you guys know I've been there for just over four years and I've seen some really dramatic
changes all for the better of course. In the last several years, we have developed and
implemented strategies to ensure good stewardship of our funding. We've done this by
narrowing our focus and this is via our community assessment, which happened about two years
ago in which the community actually let us know what they're looking for in a school. We've
also lined our operations with their missions and values. In this we're conserving our energy,
we're in the process of hopefully gurning our building and becoming a little bit more sustainable
in order to preserve what we have as natural resources. We are doing more with less. I know
that this is probably something you all have heard from so many people but truthfully we have
done so much with so little, and we're quite proud and you'll hear from some of our students.
One of the programs that we've implemented this past year and we've worked on for the last two
years has gone full force and that is our employer mentor program. Without this program being
funded we've been able to gather resources through volunteers. Even some of the Council
members have been our mentors and this has helped in providing experience, hands on
experience for our students, which we feel is very important. I know this is probably going to be
long but anyways I do want to let you guys know that without Hui Malama for the past 37 years
we've provided a service that is much needed in our community. I think most of you know that
without Hui Malama we may not have Council members, we may not have writers for The Maui
News. It's pretty amazing and we can only hope that we continue to rear very strong community
members for our future. I believe and as Financial Director I want to ensure you that your
funding, the County funding, will be used to meet all of our objectives. I believe unequivocally
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that Hui Malama is more than a school and I hope you believe that as well. I respectfully ask
that you consider Hui Malama in the Mayor's budget in full for FY 2012. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Kianna Muralt.
MS. MURALT: Hi, my name is Kianna Muralt. I'm a middle school student at Hui Malama Learning
Center. I think our school is very good because of the healthy meals we prepare and eat, and
also the small classrooms help us focus more and the teachers are more one-on-one with the
students. Last week, I shadowed one of the Council secretary. At first I was shy and nervous but
when I went up, when I went it was the best experience I had. I was happy I went. I learned that
being a secretary is a lot of work but it's something that I'm interested in so maybe one day I'll
be one. I want to say thank you for supporting Hui Malama. I really appreciate it. I hope you
continue to support us. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kennedy Souza.
MS. SOUZA: Hi, my name is Kennedy Souza and I am a high school student at Hui Malama. I've been
at Hui Malama for a year now. And one of the many things that I've learned is the value of the
commitment to our environment. As an example, today my classmates and I volunteered to
clean up the disaster made at Kanaha Beach due to the tsunami. I think that it is important for us
to get back to our community because it doesn't only make me happy but it helps to better our
environment. As a Hui, we learned to work today and hope to encourage other youths to do the
same. I want to thank you all for supporting Hui Malama and I hope you can continue to support
us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for the young ladies? Seeing none, thank you
again and nice seeing you folks again. Sandy Ryan followed by Kimberly Carhart.
MS. RYAN: Aloha, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council members. My name is Sandy Ryan and I live
in Makawao. As a Program Director at Maui Economic Development Board, I am encouraged to
seek leadership positions in our community that helped build capacity. And for the last four
years, I've been serving on the Board of Hui Malama Learning Center where I am currently
President. By the way, thank you Team Baisa for the great snacks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're welcome.
MS. RYAN: And one minor go back, earlier this evening we heard that Maui Economic Development
Board is a State agency, it's a non-profit so I just had to say that for the record. Anyway, you'll
be hearing about other aspects of Hui Malama throughout your . . . hearings throughout Maui
from students, parents, and other Board members as well as Staff Tonight my message is one
size does not fit all. I first came to Hui Malama as a parent. My son was in the 8th grade and the
education system just wasn't meeting his needs. And Hui Malama learning environment
addressed his needs because it was at that time the school was at the Hawaiian Canoe Club. So
he was a paddler and all the education program was about environment and stewardship of our
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environment. Another way that our approach fills the gaps of educational services on Maui is
through our relationships with local employers and businesses that help equip our students with
skills and knowledge to ignite their interests in careers that will help our economy. We're
fortunate to count as partners, Maui Economic Opportunity, Teens On Call, UH - Maui College
Sustainable Living Institute of Maui, the Hawaiian Canoe Club, Salvation Army, and QLCC just
to name a few. We leveraged these partner resources to improve the quality of our education and
our programming and provide our teachers with important professional development.
Partnerships also help provide our students with access to career opportunities, exposure to
academic and workforce development programs such as MEDB's Tech Careers Day, and bring
resources for excursions like the one the students went on today that are tied to sustainability,
play space learning, and service learning. So in closing, I'd like to thank you for your continued
support of Hui Malama Learning Center. Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you again.
Kimberly Carhart followed by Rosemary Robbins.
MS. CARHART: Aloha. I'm here representing Hospice Maui, and I'm here to urge the Members of the
County Council to support the allocation of funds for a 12-bed Hospice patient facility. As you
may or may not know, Hospice provides support for residents of Maui who are at the end of their
lives . . . maybe in the last month or weeks of their lives. And not all of Maui residents are able
to spend that time at home for whatever reason their condition may require that they go into a
facility and there's not currently a Hospice focus, Hospice facility. And I'm here representing
families of patients who couldn't be here tonight but I was able to collect some written testimony
so please look forward to receiving written testimony in support of allocation of funds for a 12bed Hospice facility. There's land already for this up on the plateau above the hospital.
Gorgeous piece of property. We have a generous lease from the County for this property and I
believe there is already a Certificate of Need so we just need some assistance with a allocation of
funds for this facility. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Rosemary
Robbins followed by Norma Flavala-Estrada.
MS. ROBBINS: Good evening, welcome Upcountry. Nice to meet you on my turf this time. My
prayer is to rest in peace all of those who died in Japan during this month and for as much as
possible for a healthy recovery for those who survived that ramifications didn't end on March
11th and they didn't end in Japan but I am aware of two of my former students who became
teachers are in Japan - Kevin Miller and Laurie . Kevin from Maui High and Laurie
from up here and they're still there. Scary. Keep them in your prayers please. The Maui News
this week wrote of radioactive rain water that has been borne by winds to Massachusetts. And
the mainland East coast just writing a whole lot more than what we got in The Maui News by I'm
very appreciative that they put that in there at all. So as a teacher I guess my recommendation is
that those of you who are going to be making decisions take a look by way of your computers on
the data that's available here. That's a great resource for folks to be able to sit right at their
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desks and get all that stuff that's coming in from both the government and educational outfits
like MIT who have all the lab stuff going for them that we don't have the money or the personnel
to staff. They've got it so please feel free to take advantage of them. And that's really giving us
a super clue on what's happening with the dangerous of surface water, i.e., Upcountry. Then
earlier this month the Maui Star-Advertiser noted that the Hawaii Department of Health has been
doing a study concerning contaminated land in a residential neighborhood on Kauai, and that
neighborhood was the former sugar plantation that closed in '71. So we're talking about it not
having been used for 30 years, and its land currently has a record of 30 to 80 times higher than
the allowable highly toxic contaminant levels that they found. So that again was here within our
Hawaiian islands as data available for us particularly hitting up the Department of Health. And
'08 we recalled that the Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund, State level, put out 60 projects
that they were willing to support. First worst - Big Island; second worst - Big Island; third worst
- Piiholo. And that was '08. In '04, people from Upcountry hit up the Federal government for a
half million dollar grant that got . . . (inaudible) . . . 501(C) and for that half million dollars the
Piiholo water set up didn't get treated with -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. ROBBINS: --activated carbon. So other areas of the island have you heard some concerns tonight
about the fact that other areas and other projects - Kathy Phillips from AARP mentioned that we
need to serve our population more importantly than we need to additional parks. And we also
heard Richard mention getting rid of the Upcountry water meter list and how financially that
could come around to deal well for everybody. I don't get much into finances. I'm glad you
people are here to do that. So we're certainly talking about water quality and quantity. We've
got god knows the amount of water -- quantity racing across the whole world right now and
getting worse by the month. So I know you've heard me say it before but it's wonderful to have
this chorus not for that reason but chorus of people saying quality, quality, quality. So, thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. ROBBINS: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Norma Flavala-Estrada followed by Dick Mayer.
MS. FLAVALA-ESTRADA: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good evening.

MS. FLAVALA-ESTRADA: I am a foster parent. I have been a foster parent for approximately 19
years. The last four years have been here on Maui. I came here about six years ago. I just want
to say that I'm testifying for Keiki Kokua. First of all, that big bag that you seen, I've never seen
it. What I've seen is the small little ones that you get from Foodland and that's what the kids
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come with. Sometimes they say, I started off with a suitcase but I don't know what happened to
it. The Police don't know what happened to it, and the Department never got it so the children
uses it. Mostly what I've seen is a small bag with maybe a toy, sometimes some clothing, and
that's about it. This is four years here and also in California, never seen that big bag. I take care
of children from newborns to approximately eight years old. I did try 13 years old but they were
a little bit too difficult for me so I had to drop down. The services of Keiki Kokua are extremely
important. We get paid $16.00 to $20.00 depending on the age of the children we take care of.
This is per day. On this money we not only have to supply them with food and with electricity,
and their living expenses but we also have to supply them with clothing. I live Upcountry. A lot
of the kids that I get are in town. They have shorts, shirts, and no shoes. Upcountry we need
jeans, we need shirts, and we need shoes. Mosquitos - cold they're not used to that. Keiki
Kokua Store allows me to supply the children with normal amount to clothing. These kids come
with almost nothing. They leave with maybe four pairs of pants, six, seven shirts, new
underwear, new socks, tennis shoes, two or three sets of slippers. All of these I get for
approximately $1.50 to $3.00 at the store. Because I have the card I get 30 percent discount.
These children come with a lot of special needs. They come from very low self-esteem. They
come from parents that were not educated to be parents and because they have all these
emotional problems the fact that they need something helps them. It helps them tremendously.
The suitcases, I feel guilty. I do take advantage of their suitcases and the kids love 'em. I feel
guilty because I have a lot of kids that go through with me. I specialize in medically fragile
children. Right now I have three infants -- two that are really fragile and one that's normal. The
store personally has applied for me items for example I was given a hundred dollars to buy toys
for an infant.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. FLAVALA-ESTRADA: Three toys is what this got me at KMart. Three toys. For less than
$50.00 I bought enough toys, approximately 13 or 14 toys for the rest of the children that I was
having, the foster children because I went to Keiki Kokua. Not only do I get the clothing, I also
get the toys there. There are other services I would have loved to take advantage of
unfortunately because the children are sick I can't take them out when they have all these other
things going on. Sometimes they hear about it and they're disappointed because they hear the
parties were so great, the girls got jewelry, I should have went, but they couldn't. So, in closing,
I want to say that as foster parent it is extremely important to have something like Keiki Kokua
and their Thrift Store there for us. Like I said, $20.00 for a teenager, not really doing it. We
don't do this work because we like the money. We don't do it because we like the stress. We do
it because we love the children and we were born with that. It's normal to us. So, really, I
would stress as highly as I can to fund them in what they do. They really, really help but not
only do they help the parents, the foster parents, but they help the children because when we can
help the children by supplying their needs and making them more positive in their own aspects,
they turn around and they help their parents realize the difference. I've had children that are 6
and 7 years old that will educate their parents on, oh, mom, you're not suppose to kiss me on the
mouth. Oh, Dad, you know, this is not appropriate. I'm not supposed to be naked around the
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house. Things like this. They, in turn, help their parents when they get re-unified. That's what
I'd like to say. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Next testifier is Dick Mayer. Following Dick Mayer is Duane Porter.
MR. MAYER: Aloha, Council members. I first want to give a few personal items then couple of things
that represent the Kula Community Association. One is that I understand that the Water
Department, for the first time now, is actually mapping all of the water meter locations. And I
am pleased to see that and I hope you support that effort and make sure that those things are not
only available to you but also to the public so people can see where they are so that you know as
you put water online whether it's going to go to the upper line, the middle line, down to Haiku or
where it's going go to make that available all around. And to make it very public on the website
so people could see where they are on the meter list if meters are going to be given out. Second
item, as you all know, you're working on the General Plan right now and the Maui Island Plan,
which at the end of the process you're going to come to something called the Implementation
Section which is going to have a long list of projects and things of this sort. I would urge you,
you've got this big hunk of money that probably all of sudden came through with a semiwindfall of sorts. I would hope that in the budget you put aside a certain amount, let's say $5
million or $10 million as a reserve because hopefully you will finish your work on the plan in
December and then you've got six more months in the fiscal year, and it will be very nice to be
able to say, let's start going on that Maui Island Plan priority list whether it be programs, or
whether it be projects to be built that you actually put a reserve item into the budget. One area
that you may be able to save money within the County is that we have two and maybe even more
departments that are doing GIS. If within the Long Range Planning Division of the Planning
Department and also under the Mayor's Office the Managing Information Systems they're two
separate off doing very much the same types of things. I would urge you to look at whether you
can combine those efforts and make it a more efficient operation and that they can use the same
data base that would be supporting all of the other County departments. Now, some things from
the Kula Community Association priority list. Years ago, the Association when it was faced
with a question - what position shall we take on the Kihei-Upcountry highway, took a position
that if it's built at all, it should go from Kihei up to the Haliimaile intersection. Since then, and
what we said was without having it built, the highway -- Piilani Highway, Mokulele Highway,
Haleakala Highway, all of them and Hansen Road should all be completed and then we'll have
an excellent system all around. Well, three of those four items are in place. Piilani Highway
was made into a four-lane. During that period of time Mokulele, as we all know, has been done;
Haleakala Highway; the missing link is Hansen Road. I would urge you to consider putting
some funds aside and taking care of Hansen Road which is the major link between East Maui,
Central and South and West Maui. It's very heavily traveled. I understand there was some righta-way issues on it. I can't believe that those are so insurmountable that we can't get that road
paved after decades and decades of neglect. It is a very important highway and I would urge you
to not . . . also it would take traffic off of Dairy Road.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
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MR. MAYER: Okay. I'll finish up with one last item and that is in regards to the water issue. Alan
Kaufman, a board member, described the high priority item of the water meter list, I would urge
you and the Association also includes this in its position, water quality, making sure that the
water Upcountry is good. We hear of the potential use of H'Poko, Piiholo South, all of these
issues are out there. We want to make sure that we're going to get the best water possible, very
safe, and that you should pay just as much attention to the water quantity as water quality as
much as water quality as water quantity. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again, Dick.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the last person to sign up for testimony this evening is Duane
Porter. If there's anyone that want to provide public testimony at this time, if you could come to
my left, the lady in the black, Michele, if you can sign up with her. So, thank you. Go ahead,
Duane.
MR. PORTER: Okay, good evening. I got a phone call; wife and I got a phone call last night from an
angel. That angel works at Hospice. They need help. Any little bit will help. My in-laws
passed away three days apart about a year and a half ago. Our ohana is handicapped accessible.
Six by six roll in shower, ADA toilet, bathroom itself - ADA, 36-inch doors, Hospice needs help
so that our young and old alike has a place to go because some people can't take care of their
kids, their grandparents, their friends, significant others, they all need help. And help them. It's
a great organization. Until you get to use it, then you know about it. You'll definitely know
about it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this evening? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MR. PORTER: One more quick thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. PORTER: You guys had something I think before about ADA homes, zero-line, everything.
That's something you guys should fund because we're all getting old. And some of us are young
and need it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is there anyone out there that wants to provide public testimony at
this time? Seeing none.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I want to thank the people from Upcountry for being here this evening. We're
glad to be here listening to your concerns regarding what is required for your nonprofit or
organization or the community itself. As we go through the budget process, you know, we
welcome you in the Council Chambers to provide additional testimony if you want. In fact, I
would encourage that you come during the mornings because you don't have to really wait to get
your public testimony in. So, I just want to provide you with that comment. Again, thank you
very much from the Council members for you being here tonight listening or we listening to your
request so the Budget and Finance Committee meeting for March 30, 2011 at Hannibal Tavares
Center is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
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